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The faith of our fathers firmt found ite way into Florida
in the migration of a colony of over one hundred families of Socottish
descent from the Carolinas, and others direet from Scotland.

The movement began in 1830 before the close of the pending
treaty of the United States with Spaln for poaseseion of the Florida
provinoes. They slowly drifted into Teat Florida, and settled in
the Fuchee Valley now comorised mainly in Walton County.

State histories contnin amnle proof of the import and timulr:
arrival of the large colony and ita distinetive influence in the
upbuilding of the new commonwenlth.

In recent years the Rev. "m. E. Mellvaine of Pensacols,
published a delightful sketoh of the settlement of Ruchee Valley,
entitled:; *The Early Plantingr of Fresbyterianism in West Florida."

It 48 an inapiring story of the ploneer experiences of the Fresbyterian
forefathera and their zealous efforts in the formation of the Church,
and 1ta growth and expansion over the mainland, during the half

centry following Flérida's acecearion to the United States.

Meantime, the penineula remained a wilderness overrun by
Seminole Indians, who inhabited the dense forest of the interior,
suspicioun, and resentful, toward the enoroachments of oivilized
men. MNeans of expelling the wily red men from their haunts, (the
last place left for retreat,) proved a problem for the Government
for more than fifty years.

It is claimed thrt the geopraphy of a country has much to
do with 41te inhabitation, and authorities allow that in the Seminsle
Wars, unusunl phvesical features of the penineula, hindered the army,
and obrtructed ordinary militery tatice. The great length, im=
penetrahle eyoress awamns, with thelr apiky knees, untraversable
gaw=rrass marshes of the Everrlades, strange and welrd and uncanny
to the white men, were the Indisn'e natural element, and a foll on
the trall of his deneely secluded habltat,
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Green's Hiastory of Florida states: "By 1818 all white -:f%la—
ments in the interior were deatroyed or abandoned," although 1t is a
fnet, that a few aparaely smenttered mettlere alwaye hung along the
fringe of the coast. This condition etill existed at the outbreak
of the Sminole War of 1835, when tronps were ordered to the east. Fort
lellen was established in 1835 on the urper Sain Johna, with Ford Read,
wommigsary department, situated 14 miles further south. Together,
these formed the post of oconcentration for soldiers, and supplies,
for distribution to the forte along the military rond, and laterals,
terminanting at Fort Brook, Tampa. The territory traversed by this
eyetem of ronds, comprired what ls now St. Johns Presbytery.

After military power became established, the Government, in
an effort to induce settlement in the interior, made attractive of-
fersaof land, so, that long before the Indian menace ended, civlliﬁn
gettlements weare forming near the fortas.

S8ome yveare later, when the regular army finally withdrew, a .
few of the volunteer soldiers remained as parmanent oltizens. Many
of the 11ttle for%s gree intc neighborhoods which today are the
peninsula's towna and ocities.

Early in the 1850's Ur., Franois Lee Galloway, with his young
daurhter Naney about sixteen years of ape, settled in the Fort Read
comminity. M¥r. Galloway was a ruling elder of the Presbyterian Ohurch
at his former home in Yechlinpurg County, North COaroline, and for
gome yeara following, they were the only Presbyterians reesiding at
the fort.

Probably about 1855, Judre James (. Speer seocured lands near
Lake Anopka, about 35 miles distant from Fort Mellen, where he planted
ornnre proves and ereoted 2 home gnlled Oakland. Far removed from
neightors or church. It was the custom of this Chrietian household
to as-erble daily for prayvers, including all the colored folk of the
plantation. ©n the Sabbath Judge Speer conducted religious worship
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and Sunday School in his house. The family returned in 1881 to
thelr former home in South Oarolina, coming back, after a few years
to the orange proves and the peace of pioneer 1yfe. The worship of
God in the faith of their fathere was resumed in the home at ﬂaklaéﬂ.
embryo of the Presbyterian Churchin the town of Oakland today,
flourishing in the apiritual type of divine planting: "I had

planted thee a noble vine, wholly a right seed." {Jer. 2=-21.)

It is interesting to note that in the period betwesen 18555-88
there were no new-comers.

The people lived comfortably in log houmes, or others built
of boards, split out by hand, on emall farms or orange groves whioh
ylelded moderate incomes. Oranges were packed for market in barrels,
or boxes of indisoriminate sizes, and usually sold to factore from
S8avannah or Charleaton. The malh wealth oonsiated of cattle which
roamed at large, herded once a year and marketed in Cuba, or driven
to pointa farther north. Actual need of the currenoy of the realm
was not great.

By 1885 elitrus oculture in Florida, as a profitable invest-
ment, began to attract attention. Many families of the South, renred
in plantation 1ife, and familiar with sgriounlture, broken up in the
former ways of living, found in it a eongenial change and ogoupation.

The first contingent of Fresbyteriana to arrive at Fort Read
after the Seminole War, were Dr. Andrew C. Oanldwell and his family
from Greensboro, North Carolina, in May, 1887. He had previously
purchased lands and an orange grove, which became the home, located
near to that of Mrs, W. W, Woodruff, née Miss Nancy Galloway, the
rioneer Presbyterian girl.

The new comers arrived at Mellenville, (0Old Fort Mellen),
now Sanford, on the Steamer "Darlington,” the only boat that plied
the upner 8t. Johne, and the one means of commnication with the out-
side wnrld. Ita weekly arrival, on Monday afterncons, was an avent
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of intense interest for Nellenville was the distributing point of
malle, by hnrne;mn to the interior, and the east coast, as far gouth
as Fort Dallas, Miami. :

The only building, a store adjoining a long wharf, and
erected about 1865, ocarried a large stook of general merchandise.
Being the only store nearer than Tampa, the settlers frequently oame
in groups from far in the interior fni eupplies and mail, in heavy
wagons, each drawn by several yoke of oxen, and always timed to in-
olude*boat day."

Armroximately twelve families were residing in the Fort
Read community, with perhaps as many more within a radius of twenty
miles,

No churoh organization existed. Ocoasionally a Methodist
circuit rider preached at the 1ittle log Ohuroh-School-House, and on
Sabbath mornings a comminity Sunday School was held and attended by
all, of whatever age or faith. :

In 1889 a Presbyterinn organization was made at Leesburg,
then in Sumter County, by the Evangeliat of Florida Presbytery, the .
Rev. John W. Montgomery, under the name of the Sumter Ohurch. 8ix
members of the Gamble family constituted the membershin with :
Kr, Wm, O, Gamble as a Ruling Elder, The name was later changed to
the Leegburg Pregbyterian Church. The building was ereoted in 1884.

Among those who located at Fort Resd in 1889 were twelve
Presbyterian families com!ing from Northern Florida, Georgia, South
Carolina, New York, and one from Norway. In the Georgia group was
a Presbyterian minieter, the Rev. F. F. Montgomery. These with
¥ra. Nanoy Galloway Woodruff and Dr. Andrew 0. Qaldwell and family,
were s20n gathered together for worship, and planning to organize _
and build a churoh. ,

Services and all soocinl meetinges were held at the Orange Earuu.jl
a hotelin process of ereotion. MNr. Montgomery oconducted the services, |
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¥e, B, F, ﬁﬁf;ner served aa-ﬂunduy Sohool Superintendent and Bible
Olass taaahe{ and Mra. Herbert Holland of Sprihgville, New York, an
‘accomplished musician, directed a Young People's Musiocal group.
Silver Lake Ohurch, named for a lake in the viocinity, was
organized in February, 1870, by a commigsion of Florida Presbytery,
compoged of tha;
Rev, J. W. ¥oCormmok, Mieanopy,
Rev. JohnnQ. DuBose, Tallahasaee,
Rev. James Little, Suinoy, and
Ruling Elder, B, F. Whitner, Fort Read.
0fficers of Silver Lake Churchi
Ruling Eldera:
B. F. Whitner, Yadison, Florida,

Joseph K. Whitner, Tallahassee, Florida,

Anpus Donald Bruce, M.0., Americus, Georgla,

Andrew Curran Caldwell, !.D,, Greenaboro, North Carolina,

Appleton T. Rogaetter; Gnlumbia County, Enterprise,
Volusia County, Florida,

James G, Eﬁe;r, S8cuth Carolina and Oakland.

Zolotus Wason, M.D., Apopka, ﬁranga County.

Benjamin Gound, Orlando, ﬂrgnge.uuuntr.

Deacona; R

Mz, Stoolton, North Oarolina, and Beresford, Volusia Co.,

ir. Joseph Newton Whither, Man's Bluff, South Carolina. '

Mr. Yatthew R. larks, Amariuua;ﬂﬁeﬂrgin.

Charter Membera: (40) LY

. F. and ¥ra. Sarah Jane Ohurceh Whitner,
Joseph N. and Mps. Mary Golphin Thitner,
Joseph Newton and Mras. Amelin Melyina Howard Whither,.
An-us Don=ld Bruse and !ra. Cornelia U¥arks Bruce,
r=. Jncinta Marka, Americua, CGeofgla,
I"iga Yagrie Marlks, Americus, Georfla,
Matthew R. Ynpks, Arericus, Georgin,
rz, Adeline ‘omlinaon Marks, Amerious, Gecrgla,
¥ras. Vargaret Bruce Rees, Americus, Georgla,
Mra. Janette Bruce Banna,ilgnrlaujf Georgla,

14 '

]



Charter Merberas (Continued):

Andrew 0. 0Osaldwell and Mra. Jnll& Doak Caldwell,

Ura, Naney Galloway Woodruff, Fort Read,

S8allie Davideon Caldwell,

John Willy, Christhana, Harway,

Zolotue Mmson, Y.D., and Mra. Mason,

Mp, Harrington, Arnonka,

Armleton T. Roaretter, Enterprise, Volusia COounty,

Mres. A. T. Romsetter, Fnterprise, Volusia County,

lr. and Ura. Watason, Enterprise, Tolusia Gaunty.

Benjamin Gould and Vrs. Gould,

James G. and Wrs. Speer,

Urg. Madison Melean and Miees Jomsephone MoLean,Beresford,

Mr. Stookton and Vrs. Magrie McLean, Stookton, North Oarolina,
and Bereaford, Volualas Oounty.

During the visita of Presbytery's Commisaioners, the fol-
lowing ordinances of the Church were observed: Church organization,
ordination and installation of ruling elders and deaclions, the re-
ception of membere, the comminions of the Lord's Suprer, baptism
and marriage.

Baptiema: Robert Ernest Caldwell,

Yattie Boone,
fornelia Frances Boone,
Ella Holland.
Marrinze!
Mies Maggle Marks
¥r, George D. Turner, Petersburg, Virginia.

Services were continued at the Orange House conducted by
the Rev. P. F. Montpowmery as atated supply. The oholr was led by
¥ra. Holland with the use of a small melodeon brought from Georgia
by the Marks family, proprietors of the Orange House, which was
their residence. A Woman's Home and Foreign Miseionary and Ald
Society was organized with fourteen membere:

Ura. Jaclinta Marks, President,

Mra. Hanoy Gallomway Woodruff,

irs. Cornelia Frances larks Eruoe,

lire. UYargaret Bruce Nees,

lra. Jeanette Briuce Boons,

Ure. Adeline Tomlineon Marka,

¥aa lngpie Marks,

Mre. Jglf¥ie Doak Caldwell,
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Mre. Sarah Jane.ﬂhuruh Whitner, %

¥re. Hary CGolphin Whitner, '

Ura, Amelia Melvina Howard Whither,

Mra. Marian Btone Nicholse,

Mra. Sarah Cochrane Holland, and

Uiga Ursula Holland.

No record was Ykept of thelr good workse; of ministeries to
the Church, the needy, or the sick, in a region where professional
nursing waos unknown. The building wnas completed within a year after
the organization, and the bell was a gift from Mr. Geo. W. Wylly of
Savannah and Fort Read, The interlor walles wers quaiﬁtly decorated
in columns and arches, the work of a German painter, lr. Charles
Weinrioh.

There were mprroximately fortiy oharter members residing in
the counties of Orange and Volusia. Lnter when ohurches were
organkzed at Orlando, Apopka, and OCakland in Orange, and at Enter-
prise and Beresford in Volusin, members were tranaferred to thelr
places of residence, Owing to the lose of session book, the list of
names may be incomplete.

The group at Beresford was not long alle to maintain organisa-
tion for lack of npembers, Enterprise erected a ohuroch whieh sur-
vived a few years until the building was destroyed by fire. Both
of these conpgregations were dippolved by Presbytery and transferred
to the DeLand Church.

The Rev, Wm. B. T®#lford, oalled from Luraville, Suwannee
County, wna instnlled pastor of Silver Lake Churoh in January, 1873,
by a Commianion of Florida Presbytery, then the only one in the
State, consisting of the Rev. J. W. MoCormack and the Rev. Apchibald
Baker. The relation remained unbroken for more than twenty years of
bleased ministrations 4o his people.

r. Telford wae n deep student of the Bible, an excellent
preacher and a genial friend to nll ages in hie congregation and the
commni ty.

One evening at Prayer Meeting he was suddanly impressed, as
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he afterwards told, to announoe services for young paecple to begin the
next avening; The chureh wns well filled, and with no affort to exclte
emotions, or.draw large crowds, with prayer he preached and instructed
in the Seriptures night after night, to inoreasing mumbers. Persons
who were never known in a churoh were deeply concerned, and to his
great happiness, at the end of thres waeks, thirty-seven persons stood
around the alta¥ and by profeseion of falth in Chriet wers recalved
into the Churah, .

S8¢. Johna Presbytery wam orgnanized by the IPraabjrtarr of
Florida ih convention at Silver Lake Church, Mdarch 9, 1878. The in-
fluence of the Pioneer Pastor extended beyond the limits of hias
parish, activel, aiding in the development of the Churches arising
over the veninsula, encouraging, and unholding, the work of the new
Presbytery of 8¢. Johne, and of the Synod.

The Pioneer Miseion of Silver Lake Church seemed fulfilled in
the twenty-five years of ite existence, and its life mnd activities
ebbed out with his own. In deolining health, confined at home, a
patient sufferer after his busy yenrs, he oconsoientiously protested
that another should be instnlled in hie place, although services
were regularly kept ﬁp in the Church by stated sunpliee.

In the seclusion of his illnese he perhaps newer fully
realized the truth, that the center of population had already shifted
to the rapidly growing town of Sanford, and the need of the country
town had ceased. God was pood to him, and called him Home before
the anproaching enlamity of the preat freeze of 1894-55. An evooh
in the peninenla's history from which time and events are still ocom=
puted; when his grove and all the orange groves in the peninsula were
killed and neat of the peonle forced to seek oprnortunity elsewhere. . ;

The last rites of love and respeot to the food pastor were
hdd 4in the uﬁﬁ&ch conducted by his friend, Bishop "hipple of the j
Episoopal Church, He was laid to rest beside Mra. Telford, and i

their son who tore his father's name, the ‘elders of his Church, and

many friends of pionaer dayaﬁ in the Fort Read section of the cemetery.
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In 1800 the lant remaining elder of the Church moved away
to a distant Ef;te. and Silver Lake Church ceased by order of Pregbytery

These early Churches in their day, served faithfully and well,
layingz Presbyterian foundations, the faith of our fathers; dissolved,
and yleldlng place in the progress of time, they are not dead, but
their influence yet speaks in the living Church. We revere the
memory and their recordes are of historioal walue. I

A neighboring pioneer Church, erected at the site of Fort
Maitland, organized in the &70's, served umsefully under the pastorate
of the Rev, Dy. 8. V. MoCorkle. After the passing away of the beloved
pastor, its work was done in the looation. This Church was dige
solved too by Presbytery, about the same time as Silver Lake Chureh,
and the membership largely absorbed by churchea of Orlando. Maitland
Church cherished the recollection that the youthful years of the
late Rev. Edgar Tufts were closely associated with {ts 1ife, and
followed the development of his beautiful Christian oharacter and
ministries, with warm personal interest. He worked at "Banner Elk",
Horth Carolina, and organized a school.

In 1918 at the Convention of the General Assembly in
Crlando, a gavel, made of wood taken from Si{lver lake Church, was
presented to the Moderator, Dr. C. W. Graften in memory of the
Rev. John-if. 8tagg, lately deceased pastor of the Host Churoh, by
his friend Mr, J. N. Whitner, an elder of the Sanford Churoh. At
the remquest that a service be held in the Silver Lake Ohurch on
Sabbath afterncon, Dr. Graften graciously responded, appointing a
delerntion of the Oommigeioners to aseist the Rev. Dy. R. L. Telford,
a eon of the Floneer Pastor, ﬁ‘nnnductimx the servioe, perhaps the
laat ever held in its eaored walle. The property of Silver Lake
Church 17 held 4in truat by the measion éf the Sanford Ohurch.
Falling to decay the Ohurch was recently removed, and the pews

lent to a Church in B8anford, of another demomination.
It is earnestly hoped, that in years to come, a Houae ur
God shall ngain be erected uron the sacred ground.
-]
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